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Annotated Agenda

X Southwest Wisconsin
TECHNICAL COLLEGE

BOARD MEETING NOTICE/AGENDA
Thursday, January 28, 2021

6:30 — Charger Heroes
7:00 p.m. — Board Meeting
Virtual Meeting using Zoom — www.Z0oom.us,
Meeting ID: 983 1655 0524
Passcode: 829665
Dial in Option: 13126266799,,98316550524#

ANNOTATED AGENDA

OPEN MEETING

The following statement will be read: “The January 28, 2021, regular Board meeting of
the Southwest Wisconsin Technical College Board is called to order. This meeting is
open to the public and in compliance with State Statutes. Notice of the meeting has
been sent to the press, posted on the College’s website at
www.swtc.edu/about/board/meetings, and posted on campus and in the City of
Fennimore and at CESA 3 in an attempt to make the general public aware of the time,
place and agenda of the meeting.”

A. Roll Call

B. Reports/Forums/Public Input

CONSENT AGENDA
A. Approval of Agenda
The January 28, 2021, agenda is included with the electronic Board material.

B. Minutes of the Regular Meeting of December 17, 2020
Minutes of the December 17, 2020, regular Board meeting are included with
the Board packet.

C. Financial Reports
1. Purchases Greater than $2,500
2. Treasurer’s Cash Balance
3. Budget Control


http://www.swtc.edu/about/board/meetings

Each report is available electronically with all other Board material. Caleb
White, Vice President for Administrative Services, will be at the meeting and
available for any questions.

D. Contract Revenue
There were 13 contracts totaling $43,979.03 in December 2020 being
presented for Board approval. The Contract Revenue Report is included with
the electronic Board material.

E. Personnel Items
One employment recommendation, three promotions/transfers, and three
resignations are being presented for approval in the Personnel Report. The
Personnel Report is available in the electronic Board material.
RECOMMENDATION: Approve the Consent Agenda

BOARD MONITORING OF COLLEGE EFFECTIVENESS
A. Round Robin: Expectations of Remote Work
Krista Weber, Chief Human Resources Officer, will lead a discussion focused
on the future of remote work. She is looking for input and guidance related to
the following questions:
a. How do you envision the future of remote work at the College as we
return to campus?
b. How do you envision the future of remote work at the College post
CoVvID?

OTHER ITEMS REQUIRING BOARD ACTION
A. Designate Bond Counsel
A letter of engagement has been received from Quarles & Brady LLP for bond
counsel. The letter is available with the electronic Board material.
Recommendation: Retain Allison M. Buchanan of Quarles & Brady LLP, Milwaukee,
W], as Bond Counsel.

B. Resolution Awarding the Sale of $4,000,000 General Obligation
Promissory Notes
Bids received on January 28, 2021, will be available at the meeting for the
sale of $4,000,000 in General Obligation Promissory Notes. John Mehan,
Managing Director of Robert W. Baird & Co. will present the bids. Caleb
White will be available at the meeting for questions. The draft resolution is
available electronically with all other materials. The Moody’s Investors Service
assignment of an Aa2 rating to the College for sale of the $4,000,000 in
General Obligation Promissory Notes is included in the electronic Board
packet.
Recommendation: Approve the resolution awarding the sale of $4,000,000 General
Obligation Promissory Notes




C. FY2020 Financial Audit
Caleb White will present the audit report. The final audit report is available
electronically with all other Board material.
Recommendation: Approve the 2019-20 Financial Audit as presented.

D. Bid: Chevrolet Malibu Sedans
Bids were sought for three new 2021 Chevrolet Malibu 4-door LS sedans to
be used in the Driver's Education program. All in-district Chevrolet
dealerships received notice of the bid. The public bid opening was held on
December 18, 2020, with two vendors responding to the bid. Caleb White will
present a summary of the bids received, which are included in the electronic
Board material.
Recommendation: Award the new 2021 Chevrolet Malibu 4-door LS Sedans (3) bid in
the amount of $56,700 to Ewald Automotive Group, Oconomowoc, WI.

E. Ad Hoc Board Committee(s)
In December the Board expressed interest in retaining the president and a
new four-year contract was signed. The Board committed to establishing a
Sub Committee under Board Policy 1.11 to explore retention mechanisms. An
initial sub-committee proposal is outlined in the electronic Board material.
Recommendation.: Approve the formation of an ad hoc sub-committee to explore a
long-term retention mechanism for the President.

BOARD MONITORING OF COLLEGE EFFECTIVENESS
A. Foundation Quarterly Update
Kim Schmelz, Director of External Relations & Alumni Development, will
present a quarterly Foundation report to the Board highlighting the activities
and results of fundraising efforts and other initiatives. The FY21 Second
Quarter report is available with the electronic Board material.

B. Board Monitoring Report — Safety & Security
Included in the electronic Board material is the Safety & Security Board
Monitoring Report. The focus of this report is on strategic initiatives related to
physical and cyber safety and security. Dan Imhoff, Director of Facilities,
Safety & Security, and Heath Ahnen, Director of Information Technology
Services, will present the report.

C. Staffing Update
Krista Weber, Chief Human Resources Officer, will provide an update on
College staffing. A summary is available electronically with all other Board
material.



INFORMATION AND CORRESPONDENCE

A. Enrollment Report

1.
2.

FTE Comparison YOY Report
Fall 2021 Application Report

The 2020-21 Comparison Enrollment Report and Fall 2021 Application Report
are included in the electronic Board material.

B. Chairperson’s Report

7.

1. January 12 College In-Service
2. January 15 District Boards Association Conference

College President’s Report

1. Project RISEe Update

2. Restructuring Long-term Debt (Caleb White)
3.
4
5
6

Executive Leadership Update

. Legislative Update
. Board Retreat and Upcoming Meeting Schedule
. Round Robin: Caleb White will lead a discussion focused on the new

COVID-19 Relief Funds based on the Coronovirus Response and Relief
Supplemental Appropriations Act (CRSAA)
College Happenings

D. Other Information Iltems

ESTABLISH BOARD AGENDA ITEMS FOR NEXT MEETING

A. Agenda

1.
2.

Budget Assumptions & Parameters
2021-22 Budget

B. Time and Place
To Be Determined

ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION

A. Consideration of adjourning to closed session for the purpose of:
1. Deliberating over potential college property opportunities per Wisconsin

Statutes 19.85(1)(e) Deliberating or negotiating the purchasing of public
properties, the investing of public funds, or conducting other specified
public business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a
closed session.

Discussing employment situations per Wisconsin Statutes 19.85(1)(c)
Considering employment, promotion, compensation or performance
evaluation data of any public employee over which the governmental body
has jurisdiction or exercises responsibility.



3. Discussing specific personnel issues per Wisconsin Statutes 19.85(1)(f)
Considering financial, medical, social or personal histories or disciplinary
data of specific persons, preliminary consideration of specific personnel
problems or the investigation of charges against specific persons except
where par. (b) applies which, if discussed in public, would be likely to have
a substantial adverse effect upon the reputation of any person referred to
in such histories or data, or involved in such problems or investigations.

B. Approval of Closed Session Minutes of November 19, 2020, and December

17, 2020

RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION
A. Action, if necessary, on Closed Session Items

ADJOURNMENT




Open Meeting

The following statement will be read: “The January 28, 2021, regular Board meeting of
the Southwest Wisconsin Technical College Board is called to order. This meeting is
open to the public and in compliance with State Statutes. Notice of the meeting has
been sent to the press, posted on the College’s website at
www.swtc.edu/about/board/meetings, and posted on campus and in the City of
Fennimore and at CESA 3 in an attempt to make the general public aware of the time,
place and agenda of the meeting.”

A. Roll Call

B. Reports/Forums/Public Input


http://www.swtc.edu/about/board/meetings

Consent Agenda

A. Approval of Agenda

Southwest Wisconsin
msTECHNICAL COLLEGE

BOARD MEETING NOTICE/AGENDA
Thursday, January 28, 2021

6:30 — Charger Heroes
7:00 p.m. — Board Meeting
Virtual Meeting using Zoom — www.Zoom.us,
Meeting ID: 983 1655 0524
Passcode: 829665
Dial in Option: 13126266799,,98316550524#

AGENDA

OPEN MEETING

The following statement will be read: “The January 28, 2021, regular Board meeting of
the Southwest Wisconsin Technical College Board is called to order. This meeting is
open to the public and in compliance with State Statutes. Notice of the meeting has
been sent to the press, posted on the College’s website at
www.swtc.edu/about/board/meetings, and posted on campus and in the City of
Fennimore and at CESA 3 in an attempt to make the general public aware of the time,
place and agenda of the meeting.”

A. Roll Call
B. Reports/Forums/Public Input

CONSENT AGENDA
A. Approval of Agenda
B. Minutes of the Regular Meeting of December 17, 2020
C. Financial Reports
1. Purchases Greater than $2,500
2. Treasurer's Cash Balance
3. Budget Control
D. Contract Revenue
E. Personnel Iltems



http://www.swtc.edu/about/board/meetings
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BOARD MONITORING OF COLLEGE EFFECTIVENESS
A. Round Robin: Expectations of Remote Work

OTHER ITEMS REQUIRING BOARD ACTION
A. Designate Bond Counsel
B. Resolution Awarding the Sale of $4,000,000 General Obligation Promissory
Notes
FY2020 Financial Audit
Bid: Chevrolet Malibu Sedans
Ad Hoc Board Committee(s)

moo

BOARD MONITORING OF COLLEGE EFFECTIVENESS
A. Foundation Quarterly Update
B. Board Monitoring Report — Safety & Security
C. Staffing Update

INFORMATION AND CORRESPONDENCE
A. Enrollment Report
1. FTE Comparison YOY Report
2. Fall 2021 Application Report
B. Chairperson’s Report
1. January 12 College In-Service
2. January 15 District Boards Association Conference
C. College President’s Report
1. Project Rise Update
2. Restructuring Long-term Debt
3. Executive Leadership Update
4. Legislative Update
5. Board Retreat and Upcoming Meeting Schedule
6
1.
. O

. Round Robin: COVID-19 Relief Funds
College Happenings
D. Other Information Items
EsSTABLISH BOARD AGENDA ITEMS FOR NEXT MEETING
A. Agenda
B. Time and Place

ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION
A. Consideration of adjourning to closed session for the purpose of:
1. Deliberating over potential college property opportunities per Wisconsin
Statutes 19.85(1)(e) Deliberating or negotiating the purchasing of public
properties, the investing of public funds, or conducting other specified
public business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a
closed session.
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2. Discussing employment situations per Wisconsin Statutes 19.85(1)(c)
Considering employment, promotion, compensation or performance
evaluation data of any public employee over which the governmental body
has jurisdiction or exercises responsibility.

3. Discussing specific personnel issues per Wisconsin Statutes 19.85(1)(f)
Considering financial, medical, social or personal histories or disciplinary
data of specific persons, preliminary consideration of specific personnel
problems or the investigation of charges against specific persons except
where par. (b) applies which, if discussed in public, would be likely to have
a substantial adverse effect upon the reputation of any person referred to
in such histories or data, or involved in such problems or investigations.

B. Approval of Closed Session Minutes of November 19, 2020, and December

17, 2020

RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION
A. Action, if necessary, on Closed Session Items

ADJOURNMENT

{Facilities at Southwest Tech are handicap accessible. For all accommodations,
call 608-822-2632 or e-mail disabilityservices@swtc.edu.}



mailto:disabilityservices@swtc.edu
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B. Minutes of the Regular Board Meeting of December 17, 2020

MINUTES OF THE . Southwest Wisconsin
REGULAR MEETING OF THE BOARD OF TECHNICAL COLLEGE

DIRECTORS OF SOUTHWEST WISCONSIN TECHNICAL COLLEGE
DECEMBER 17, 2020

The Board of Southwest Wisconsin Technical College met in open session of the
regular Board meeting commencing at 7:02 p.m. on December 17, 2020. Due to the
COVID-19 pandemic, the meeting was conducted using Zoom videoconferencing
technology. The following members were present:

Charles Bolstad, Melissa Fitzsimons, Tracy Fillback, Jeanne Jordie, Chris
Prange, Donald Tuescher, Crystal Wallin

Absent: David Blume, Jane Wonderling

Others present for all or a portion of the meeting included Jason Wood and College Staff:
Heath Ahnen, Karen Campbell, Holly Clendenen, Derek Dachelet, Katie Garrity, Katie
Glass, Robin Hamel, Mandy Henkel, Cynde Larsen, Kim Maier, Krista Weber, and Caleb
White.

Chairperson Bolstad called the meeting to order. Proof of notice was given as to the
time, place, and purpose of the meeting. The following is the official agenda:

BOARD MEETING NOTICE/AGENDA
Thursday, December 17, 2020

6:30 — Midwifery Program
7:00 p.m. — Board Meeting
Virtual Meeting using Zoom — www.Zoom.us, Meeting ID: 934 4673 8262
Passcode: 817221
Dial in Option: 1-312-626-6799, 93446738262#

AGENDA

OPEN MEETING

The following statement will be read: “The December 17, 2020, regular Board meeting
of the Southwest Wisconsin Technical College Board is called to order. This meeting is
open to the public and in compliance with State Statutes. Notice of the meeting has
been sent to the press, posted on the College’s website at
www.swtc.edu/about/board/meetings, and posted on campus and in the City of
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Fennimore and at CESA 3 in an attempt to make the general public aware of the time,
place and agenda of the meeting.”

A. Roll Call
B. Reports/Forums/Public Input

CONSENT AGENDA
A. Approval of Agenda
B. Minutes of the Regular Meeting of November 19, 2020
C. Financial Reports
1. Purchases Greater than $2,500
2. Treasurer's Cash Balance
3. Budget Control
D. Contract Revenue
E. Personnel Iltems

OTHER ITEMS REQUIRING BOARD ACTION
A. Resolution Authorizing the Issuance of Not to Exceed $4,000,000 General
Obligation Promissory Notes and Setting the Sale
B. Employee Compensation
C. Grant County Economic Development Corporation Lease
D. Student Senate By-laws Modification

BOARD MONITORING OF COLLEGE EFFECTIVENESS
A. Assessment Academy
B. Charger Tech 360
C. Board Monitoring Report — Student Access
D. Staffing Update

INFORMATION AND CORRESPONDENCE
A. Enrollment Report
B. Chairperson’s Report
C. College President’s Report
D. Other Information Items

EsSTABLISH BOARD AGENDA ITEMS FOR NEXT MEETING
A. Agenda
B. Time and Place

ADJOURN TO CLOSED SESSION
A. Consideration of adjourning to closed session for the purpose of:

1. Discussing a potential student legal issue per Wisconsin Statutes
19.85(1)(g) Conferring with legal counsel for the governmental body who
is rendering oral or written advice concerning strategy to be adopted by
the body with respect to litigation in which it is or is likely to become
involved.
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2. Discussing employment situations per Wisconsin Statutes 19.85(1)(c)
Considering employment, promotion, compensation or performance
evaluation data of any public employee over which the governmental body
has jurisdiction or exercises responsibility.

3. Discussing specific personnel issues per Wisconsin Statutes 19.85(1)(f)
Considering financial, medical, social or personal histories or disciplinary
data of specific persons, preliminary consideration of specific personnel
problems or the investigation of charges against specific persons except
where par. (b) applies which, if discussed in public, would be likely to have
a substantial adverse effect upon the reputation of any person referred to
in such histories or data, or involved in such problems or investigations.

B. Approval of Closed Session Minutes of November 19, 2020.

RECONVENE TO OPEN SESSION
A. Action, if necessary, on Closed Session Items

ADJOURNMENT

{Facilities at Southwest Tech are handicap accessible. For all accommodations, call 608-
822-2632 or e-mail disabilityservices@swtc.edu.}

After a review of the Consent Agenda, including the December 17, 2020 agenda;
November 19, 2020, Board meeting minutes; financial reports; and three contracts
totaling $3,731.25 in November 2020, Mr. Tuescher moved to approve the Consent
Agenda, as presented. Mr. Prange seconded the motion; motion carried on a
unanimous roll call vote.

Caleb White, Vice President for Administrative Services, reviewed the borrowing
process noting the first resolution is to set the sale of the bonds. The sale would take
place in January and the sale authorization would take place at the January 28, 2021,
board meeting. The Resolution Authorizing the Issuance of Not to Exceed $4,000,000
General Obligation Promissory Notes: and Setting the Sale was reviewed. Up to
$1,500,000 will be for the public purpose of paying the cost of building remodeling and
improvement projects with the remaining funds (up to $2,500,000) being used for the
public purpose of paying the cost of acquiring movable equipment. Mr. Prange moved
to approve the Resolution Authorizing the Issuance of Not to Exceed $4,000,000
General Obligation Promissory Notes; and Setting the Sale. Ms. Jordie seconded the
motion. Upon a roll call vote with all members present voting affirmatively, the motion
carried.

Krista Weber, Chief Human Resources Officer, presented a proposal to increase base
wages for all benefited employees by 0.81% effective with the January 8, 2021, payroll.
The Consumer Price Index (CPI) for this past year was 1.81% and all benefited
employees received an increase in their base wages of 1.0% on July 1, 2020.
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Increasing the base wages of benefited employees aligns with the College’s
compensation philosophy. Mr. Tuescher moved to approve base wage increases for all
benefited employees by 0.81% effective with the January 8, 2021, payroll with Ms.
Fillback seconding the motion. Upon a roll call vote where each member voted
affirmatively, the motion carried.

Mr. White presented the 2021 office space lease for Grant County Economic
Development Corporation noting the 2021 lease remains the same as the 2020 lease
agreement and is for rental and furniture for two office spaces. Ms. Jordie moved to
approve the 2021 lease in the amount of $370 per month for Grant County Economic
Development Corporation. Mr. Prange seconded the motion; upon a roll call vote where
all members voted affirmatively, the motion carried.

At the November Board meeting Robin Hamel, Student Life Coordinator, presented a
proposed change to the Student Senate Bylaws to allow student groups, special interest
groups, or extracurricular organizations to follow the same requirements and receive the
same benefits as the occupational or co-curricular organizations. At the Board’s
request, legal counsel reviewed the changes. Dr. Wood presented the revised changes
for consideration by the Board The two sections proposed for approval are “There are
two Categories of Student Organizations” and “Procedure for Starting a New
Occupational or Co-curricular Organization.” Mr. Tuescher moved to approve the
change to the Student Senate Bylaws on the condition the Student Senate approves the
changes. Ms. Fitzsimons seconded the motion. The motion was carried on a roll call
vote with all members present voting affirmatively.

Dr. Wood explained the College has committed to participating in a four-year Higher
Learning Commission Assessment Academy to move from a culture of assessment to a
culture of learning. This was a competitive process and shows our improvement in
assessment. Mandy Henkel, College Effectiveness Manager, and Cynde Larsen,
Executive Dean of Health Occupations, are co-leading the Assessment Academy team
and presented on the plan for the four-year commitment including a focus on goals, the
team, and examples of assessment currently being done at the College.

Heath Ahnen, Director of Information Technology Services, provided an update on the
laptop program, branded as Charger Tech 360. The campus-wide initiative provided
over 750 laptops to students with pre-loaded software for use while they are a student
this past fall. It is anticipated an additional 150 laptops will be launched and distributed
to new students for the spring semester. Improvements to the process included allowing
students who didn’t initially meet the requirements to take advantage of the program,
communication, and process improvements developed in collaboration with Vanguard,
our vendor.

The Board heard a board monitoring report on Student Access from Katie Garrity, Chief
Academic & Student Services Officer. The Board monitoring report was distributed to
the Board members prior to the meeting and included an outline of Southwest Tech’s
efforts during the pandemic to increase access, reduce barriers to post-secondary
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education and skill training, increase retention and completion, and provide a viable,
competent workforce for district employers.

An update on College staffing was provided by Krista Weber. She noted there was one
open position. This position is an internal search for a Chief Student Services Officer
and is currently in the interview process.

Caleb White presented the 2020-21 Comparison Enrollment Report and Fall 2021
Application Report. The FTE report reflected a seven percent decline in FTEs as
compared to one year ago. The Fall 2021 application report numbers indicate a
comparable number of students have applied as compared to last year at this time. The
Spring 2021 numbers reflect an increase in 133 students; however it was noted a
change was made to the report to reflect those students beginning in programs in
January as spring applicants rather than in the numbers for the next fall.

Chairperson Bolstad discussed the WTCS legislative priorities with the Board under the
Chairperson’s Report.

Dr. Wood provided information on the following topics.

» The Academic Master Plan was reviewed and it was noted the Plan will be

brought back to the Board periodically throughout the year.

» The WTCS President’s Association has discussed the big picture related to the
Wisconsin 2021-2023 biennial budget being developed in the legislature. The
independent office of the Wisconsin Policy Forum has indicated not to expect
new money for the WTCS. The process is just beginning and more information
should be available in May 2021.

Virtual meetings with the local legislators are in the process of being scheduled.
More information will be emailed to the Board members as it is available.

The plan for the Spring COVID response is to continue to open slowly.
Academic staff are working on a guide as to when classes will be in person.
Project Rise slides were available in the Board material and there were no
questions.

For the fifth year in a row, over 90 percent of benefitted employees have
donated to the Foundation or committed to donate through payroll deduction
during the Employee Fundraising Campaign. This year part-time employees
were included.

YV V V V

The Board members held a discussion related to COVID-19 vaccinations and
expectations they would like to see related to this topic. Discussion focused on the
vaccines, mandate or no mandate, and availability of the vaccines. Thoughts ranged
from time involved in distribution of vaccines, storage and administration of the
vaccines, varying thoughts on mandating, if there is a mandate need to take into
account individual considerations, education on the vaccines, and the environment
could look different in 3 — 6 months. College staff will consider the Board’s discussion in
the decision-making process.
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Under Other Information Items, Ms. Jordie noted appreciation for the different employee
and student groups who have presented prior to the Board meetings and would like the
presentations to continue.

Mr. Tuescher moved to adjourn to closed session for the purposes of discussing
potential student legal issues per Wis. Stats. 19.85(1)(g), discussing employment
situations per Wis. Stats. 19.85(1)(c), and discussing specific personnel issues per Wis.
Stats. 19.85(1)(f). Mr. Prange seconded the motion. Upon a roll call vote with all
members voting affirmatively, the motion carried and the meeting adjourned to closed
session at 8:56 p.m.

The Board reconvened to open session at 9:49 p.m. With no further business to come
before the Board, Mr. Prange moved to adjourn the meeting with Ms. Jordie seconding
the motion. The motion carried and the meeting adjourned at 9:50 p.m.

Chris J. Prange, Secretary
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C. Financial Reports
1. Purchases Greater than $2,500

Vendor
SLOAN IMPLEMENT COMPANY, INC.
GARY'S AUTO
WESTERN TECHNICAL COLLEGE
MIDWEST DEFENSE SOLUTIONS LLC
GARY'S AUTO
ELSEVIER
TELEGRAPH HERALD
CAPTE-COMMISSION ON
HEARTLAND BUSINESS SYSTEMS
FENNIMORE TIMES
QUARTZ HEALTH BENEFIT PLANS
WPS HEALTH INSURANCE
AHIMA
AETNA CONTINENTAL INSURANCE
QUARTZ HEALTH BENEFIT PLANS
FENNIMORE TIMES
J.F. AHERN COMPANY
SWTC FOUNDATION
GARY'S AUTO

Total Invoices

Vendor
KNUPP & WATSON & WALLMAN INC
SNAP-ON INDUSTRIAL

Invoice #
"121435
1C4PIMDSOHW525812
IN10055
1742
1G1ZB5ST7JF110329
35716DE3
"11202091
"637182
380019-H
"253370
R MEISSNER 1.1.21
742692291 T SENN
"27803353
AHL2170516 2021
D MEISSNER 1.1.21
"256347
"411587
FOR HOLIDAY PROJ
1G1JE6SB6GA144154

PO #
"6987
"6986

VETERINARY SIMULATOR INDUSTRIES 6981

AMADA MACHINERY AMERICA INC

Total Purchase Orders

Vendor

WI Tech EE Benefits Dec 2020
941 Fed PR Tax #25180921
WI EE Trust Funds #239410
941 ER Fed Tax #94086331
Great-West Trust #874849535
WI DOR PR Tax #643-637-536
W1 DOR PR Tax #431-577-888
Delta Dental #417762
Great-West Trust Co #8764334
Delta Dental #418929

Delta Dental #424257

Delta Dental #416604

Delta Dental #423064

Total Bank Withdrawals

"6984

Transaction #
CMTRX00002868
CMTRX00002872
CMTRX00002882
CMTRX00002879
CMTRX00002873
CMTRX00002872
CMTRX00002879
CMTRX00002870
CMTRX00002880
CMTRX00002875
CMTRX00002881
CMTRX00002863
CMTRX00002879

SOUTHWEST WISCONSIN TECHNICAL COLLEGE
PURCHASES GREATER THAN $2,500
FOR THE PERIOD 12/01/2020 - 12/31/2020

Invoices
Description

John Deere 330 Skid Steer
2017 Jeep Cherolee rebuilder
Fall plumbing apprentice inst
Ammunition order
2018 Chevy Malibu rebuilder
books
Misc Ads
2021 annual PT accred fee
HBS Flex Service
Vitrual Open House
Medicare Prem
T Senn Medicare Prem
textbooks
B Loy Medicare Prem
D Meissner Medicare Prem
Nonprofit Leadership ad
SH System Repair
Holiday Proj/student senate
2016 Chewy Sonic Rebuilder

Purchase Orders
Description
Alternative Delivery: Nonprofit Leadership & Leadership Development Promotion
Electromech: METER CERT KIT WITH EEDM525F
Agribusiness: Bovine Uterus Set for Large Cow
Welding: Marvel Saw Band Wheel assembly replacement

Bank Withdrawals

Audit Trail

WDL000007710
WDL000007727
WDL000007763
WDL000007756
WDL000007732
WDLO000007726
WDLO000007752
WDL000007714
WDL000007758
WDL000007742
WDL000007762
WDL000007704
WDL000007757

Amount
$49,200.00
$12,000.00
$11,348.00
$8,000.00
$6,000.00
$5,921.49
$5,233.00
$4,500.00
$4,340.00
$4,090.50
$3,305.52
$3,038.28
$2,917.83
$2,911.80
$2,899.56
$2,885.00
$2,594.00
$2,500.00

$2,500.00

Amount
$18,880.00
$7,857.62
$4,780.00

$2,615.00

Amount
$311,558.37
$135,089.14
$125,509.76
$106,107.33

$29,243.46
$26,830.37
$21,838.68
$7,048.78
$6,164.92
$5,185.00
$3,554.35
$3,134.40

$2,727.25

$136,184.98

$34,132.62

$783,991.81
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Payroll Date Transaction #

Direct Deposit 12/23/2020 UPRCC00001190
Direct Deposit 12/11/2020 UPRCC00001183
Direct Deposit 12/11/2020 UPRCC00001189
Direct Deposit 12/11/2020 UPRCC00001186
Direct Deposit 12/23/2020 UPRCC00001195
Direct Deposit 12/11/2020 UPRCC00001184
Direct Deposit 12/23/2020 UPRCC00001191
Direct Deposit 12/23/2020 UPRCC00001193
Direct Deposit 12/11/2020 UPRCC00001185

Total Payroll

Vendor Transaction #

US Bank ending 12.08.2020 CMTRX00002879
US Bank ending 11.24.2020 CMTRX00002870

Total Purchase Cards

Total Purchases >= $2,500

Audit Trail

WDLO000007735
WDL000007717
WDL000007723
WDL000007720
WDLO000007744
WDL000007718
WDL000007736
WDLO000007738
WDLO000007719

Audit Trail
WDLO000007754
WDL000007713

Payroll

Purchase Cards

Amount
$299,452.69
$298,648.36

$49,256.43
$32,981.96
$7,502.44
$6,521.49
$4,862.54
$4,085.38

$3,871.69

Amount
$58,854.16
$35,031.33

$707,182.98

$93,885.49

$1,755,377.88
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2. Treasurer’s Cash Balance

Southwest Wisconsin Technical College
Report of Treasurers Cash Balance 12/31/2020

Receipts

Fund
1 General
2 Special Revenue
3 Capital Projects
4 Debt Service
5 Enterprise
6 Internal Service
7 Financial Aid/Activities

Total Receipts

Expenses

Fund
1 General
2 Special Revenue
3 Capital Projects
4 Debt Service
5 Enterprise
6 Internal Service
7 Financial Aid/Activities

Total Expenses

Net cash change - month

EOM Cash Balances
-Midwest One Operating 0356
-Midwest One Investment 1324
-Midwest One Cash Account 5062
-Cash on Hand
-Local Government Investment Pool

Ending Cash/Investment Balance

177,715.95
56,695.84
5,318.08
80,605.65
334,457.29

1,648,015.81
110,453.05
307,087.70
475.00
58,236.03
362,808.30

9,354,349.01

2,940.00
1,232,307.93

654,792.81

2,487,075.89

10,589,596.94

(1,832,283.08)
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3. Budget Control

Southwest Wisconsin Technical College
YTD Summary for Funds 1-7
For 6 Months ended December 2020

2020-21 2020-21 2020-21 2019-20 2018-19 2017-18 2016-17

Budget YTD Actual Percent Percent Percent Percent Percent
General Fund Revenue 23,130,100.00 6,851,902.91 29.62 27.72 26.28 27.64 26.42
General Fund Expenditures 23,782,100.00 11,645,724.60 48.97 46.07 47.09 45.30 45.66
Capital Projects Fund Revenue 4,020,000.00 14,342.00 0.36 0.06 99.08 103.56 101.04
Capital Projects Fund Expenditures 5,862,000.00 1,528,760.85 26.08 14.58 31.52 38.42 36.00
Debt Service Fund Revenue 5,690,500.00 - - - 2.66 3.65 4.34
Debt Service Fund Expenditures 6,767,500.00 1,202,027.77 17.76 8.02 10.72 12.00 12.57
Enterprise Fund Revenue 1,336,000.00 769,617.36 57.61 49.87 44.75 41.71 41.91
Enterprise Fund Expenditure 1,706,000.00 750,814.58 44.01 59.09 45.09 43.95 45.27
Internal Service Fund Revenue 4,427,000.00 1,951,959.31 44.09 42.20 44.27 46.25 48.92
Internal Service Fund Expenditures 4,427,000.00 2,081,394.88 47.02 44.96 46.76 47.26 46.46
Trust & Agency Fund Revenue 8,000,000.00 2,152,740.29 26.91 31.21 38.11 42.38 44.80
Trust & Agency Fund Expenditures 8,000,000.00 2,732,574.61 34.16 38.27 40.44 41.96 44.89
Grand Total Revenue 46,603,600.00 11,740,561.87 25.19 24.95 34.12 34.12 34.01
Grand Total Expenditures 50,544,600.00 19,941,297.29 39.45 37.42 40.43 40.54 41.17
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D. Contract Revenue

There were 13 contracts totaling $43,979.03 in December 2020 being presented for Board approval. The
Contract Revenue Report is included below.
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2020-2021 CONTRACTS
12/1/2020 - 12/31/2020

INDIRECT COST FACTOR

Exchange of 4 4
Services € £ N
Number (Instructional u'f' blu _g
Contract Holder Contract # Service Provided Contact Served Price Fees Waived) 8| Sl 3|
Prairie Du Chen School District 03-2021-0082-1-11 Introduction to Criminal Justice Studies Kim Maier 19 S 10,563.70 No X
Prairie Du Chen School District 03-2021-0082-1-11  Nursing Assistant-Short Term Kim Maier 14 S 8,152.82 No X
USA Clay Target League 03-2021-0089-T-42 League Director Duties - December Caleb White S 100.00 No X
WAT Grant - Community First Bank 03-2021-0095-1-47  Productive Conflict Amy Charles 12 S 995.33 No X
WAT Grant - Community First Bank 03-2021-0095-1-47  Productive Conflict Amy Charles 12 S 995.33 No X
Quantum Devices 03-2021-0101-1-41  Fire Extinguisher Training Kris Wubben 10 S 206.29 No X
Cowboy County Church 03-2021-0115-1-42  BLS for Healthcare Provider Kris Wubben 1 S 94.39 Yes X
Cowboy County Church 03-2021-0115-1-42  Heartsaver First Aid Kris Wubben 1 S 94.39 Yes X
Fennimore High School 03-2021-0408-1-13  WI Statute 118.15 Julie Pluemer 2 S 2,422.65 No X
lowa-Grant High School 03-2021-0410-1-13  WI Statute 118.15 Julie Pluemer 3 S 4,331.78 No X
Platteville High School 03-2021-0416-1-13 WI Statute 118.15 Julie Pluemer 3 S 5,936.50 No X
Weston High School 03-2021-0428-1-13 WI Statute 118.15 Julie Pluemer 1 S 2,558.55 No X
Ithaca High School 03-2021-0436-1-13  WI Statute 118.15 Julie Pluemer 1 S 780.60 No X
River Ridge High School 03-2021-0444-1-13 WI Statute 118.15 Julie Pluemer 1 S 2,558.55 No X
River Valley High School 03-2021-0456-1-13 WI Statute 118.15 Julie Pluemer 1 S 2,457.30 No X
North Crawford High School 03-2021-0458-1-13 WI Statute 118.15 Julie Pluemer 1 S 1,730.85 No X
TOTAL of all Contracts 82 S 43,979.03
Exchange of Services 2 S 188.78
For Pay Service 80 § 43,790.25




24

E. Personnel Items

One employment recommendation, three promotions/transfers, and three
resignations are being presented for approval in the Personnel Report. The
Personnel Report is available in the electronic Board material.

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the Consent Agenda, as presented.

PERSONNEL REPORT
January 28, 2021

Employment: NEW HIRES

Name Matt Nation

Title Evening Custodian

Number of Applicants and Number 8 applicants; 3 interviewed

Interviewed

Start Date 2/1/2021

Salary/Wages $16.50

Classification Full-Time

Education and/or Experience Welding certificate from Gateway Technical
College; 6 years of maintenance/tech experience
in manufacturing

PROMOTIONS / TRANSFERS

Holly Clendenen Chief Student Services Officer -Effective 1/4/2021

Chris Bowers Disability & Support Services Officer — Effective
1/18/2021

Mandy Henkel College Effectiveness Manager/Accreditation
Liaison Officer — Effective 3/8/2021

RETIREMENTS / RESIGNATIONS

Jared Kjos (Resignation 1/15/2021) Evening Custodian

Nelson NeCollins (Resignation 1/15/2021) Evening Custodian

Dustin Farrey (Resignation 1/15/2021) Evening Custodian
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Board Monitoring of College Effectiveness

A. Round Robin: Expectations of Remote Work

Krista Weber, Chief Human Resources Officer, will lead a discussion focused on
the future of remote work. She is looking for input and guidance related to the
following questions:
c. How do you envision the future of remote work at the College as we return
to campus?
d. How do you envision the future of remote work at the College post
COVID?
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Other Items Requiring Board Action

A. Designate Bond Counsel

A letter of engagement has been received from Quarles & Brady LLP for bond
counsel. The letter is available below.
Recommendation: Retain Allison M. Buchanan of Quarles & Brady LLP, Milwaukee,
WI, as Bond Counsel.
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B. Resolution Awarding the Sale of $4,000,000 General Obligation
Promissory Notes

Bids received on January 28, 2021, will be available at the meeting for the sale of

$4,000,000 in General Obligation Promissory Notes. John Mehan, Managing

Director of Robert W. Baird & Co. will present the bids. Caleb White will be

available at the meeting for questions. The draft resolution is available below.

The Moody'’s Investors Service assignment of an Aa2 rating to the College for

sale of the $4,000,000 in General Obligation Promissory Notes is included below.
Recommendation: Approve the resolution awarding the sale of $4,000,000 General
Obligation Promissory Notes
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C. FY2020 Financial Audit

Caleb White will present the audit report. The final audit report is available
below.
Recommendation: Approve the 2019-20 Financial Audit as presented.
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SOUTHWEST WISCONSIN TECHNICAL COLLEGE
MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
As of and for the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION {continued)

Non-operating revenues (expenses) are revenue and expense items not related directly to
providing instruction. Net non-operating revenues increased $704,569 or 3.89% in 2020.

» State operating appropriations increased $523,582 or 6.37% in 2020. Final state aid
payments are not received until November following the fiscal year end. State aid is
determined by a formula that takes into consideration actual expenditures, student FTE's,
and equalized property valuations of each of the sixteen technical colleges in Wisconsin.

» Interest expense decreased $461,226 or 38% in 2020 compared to 2019. Interest
expenses are the biggest non-operating expense for Southwest Tech.

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION

The Statement of Net Position includes all assets, (items that Southwest Tech owns and amounts
that are owed to Southwest Tech by others) and liabilities (amounts Southwest Tech owes to others
and what has been collected from others prior to providing the services). This statement is prepared
using the accrual basis of accounting whereby revenues and assets are recognized when the
service is provided and expenses and liabilities are recognized when others provide the service to
Southwest Tech, regardless of when cash is exchanged.

Total net position increased $1,924,213 or 5.84% in 2020 compared to an increase of $4,378,591
or 15.32% in 2019. Southwest Tech ended its fiscal year with net position of $34,889,295 in 2020
of which $20,469,490 was net investment in capital assets, $481,252 was restricted for student
financial aid, $1,869,963 was restricted for capital projects, $2,364,940 was restricted for debt
service assistance, and $9,318,035 was unrestricted net position. Unrestricted net position
represents the amount of discretionary resources that can be used to fund general Southwest Tech
operations.

Total assets increased $5,566,638 or 8.38% in 2020 and decreased $1,064,241 or 1.58% in 2018.
Net capital assets increased $1,149,715 or 2.54% in 2020 compared to an increase of $364,784
or .81% in 2019.

Southwest tech's current liabilities increased $1,021,144 or 17.19% in 2020 compared to an
increase of $340,865 or 5.16% in 2019.
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SOUTHWEST WISCONSIN TECHNICAL COLLEGE

MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As of and for the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

STATEMENT OF NET POSITION {continued)

The components of the statement of net position are summarized in Table 2:

Table 2

Condensed Statements of Net Position

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents
Net pension asset
Net capital assets
Other assets

Total assets

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Related to pension
Related to other postemployment benefits -
health insurance

Total deferred outflows of resources

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Long-term liabilities

Total liabilities

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Related to pension
Related to other postemployment benefits -
health insurance

Total deferred outflows of resources
NET PCSITION

Net invested in capital assets
Restricted for student financial aid
Restricted for capital projects
Restricted for debt service
Unrestricted

Total net position

2020 2019 Change % Change
$ 16,179,861 $ 14,711,032 $ 1,468,829 9.98
2,494,865 - 2,494 865 -
46,390,580 45,261,458 1,129,122 2.49
6,941,593 6,488,364 453,229 6.99
72,006,899 66,460,854 5,546,045 8.34
5,365,632 7,296,841 (1,931,209) (26.47)
725,302 2,840,076 (2,114,774) -
6,090,934 10,136,917 (4,045,983) (26.47)
6,962,348 5,941,204 1,021,144 17.19
28,357,596 33,098,889 (4,741,293) (14.32)
35,319,944 39,040,093 (3,720,149) (9.53)
7,474,882 3,941,138 3,533,744 89.66
434,305 651,458 (217,153) -
7,909,187 4,592,596 3,316,591 89.66
20,448,897 19,444,195 1,004,702 517
481,252 460,232 21,020 4.57
1,869,963 1,362,684 507,279 37.23
2,364,940 1,585,231 779,709 49.19
9,318,035 10,112,740 (794,705) (7.86)
$ 34,868,702 $ 32,965,082 $ 1,903,620 5.77

CAPITAL ASSET AND DEBT ADMINISTRATION

Capital Assets

At June 30, 2020, Southwest Tech had $87,088,873 in capital assets, including land, construction
in progress, land improvements, buildings and improvements, and moveable equipment. Total
accumulated depreciation on these assets was $40,677,700 Asset acquisitions totaled $4,992 633.
Southwest Tech recognized depreciation expense of $3,014,303. Detailed information about
capital assets can be found in Note 3 to the financial statements.



67



68



69

SOUTHWEST WISCONSIN TECHNICAL COLLEGE
STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION
June 30, 2020 and 2019

Primary Government Component Unit
2020 2019 2020 2019
ASSETS
CURRENT ASSETS
Cash and investments $ 16,179,861 $ 14,711,032 $ 421,907 $ 450,856
Taxes receivable 3,477,638 3,528,560 - -
Accounts receivable, net 413,215 400,692 124,926 183,736
Student accounts receivable 645,754 585,969 - -
Due from other governments 51,034 25,579 - -
Accrued self-insurance 1,722,220 1,280,229 - -
Inventories 247,238 349,317 - -
Prepaid expenses 384,494 318,018 - 611
Total current assets 23,121,454 21,199,396 546,833 635,202
NONCURRENT ASSETS
Net pension asset 2,494 865 - - -
Investments - - 4,336,967 4,215,548
Capital assets not being depreciated 2,007,294 1,986,248 883,186 208,009
Capital assets being depreciated, net 44 383 286 43,275,210 2,296,403 2,804,636
Total noncurrent assets 48 885 445 45 261,458 7,516,556 7,228,193
Total assets 72,006,899 66,460,854 8,063,389 7,863,395
DEFERRED QUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Related to pension 5,365,632 7,296,841 - -
Related to other postemployment benefits -
health insurance 725,302 2,840,076 - -
Total deferred outflows of resources 6,090,934 10,136,917 - -
LIABILITIES
CURRENT LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and other current liabilities 776,018 1,051,364 13,152 7,977,395
Accrued salaries and benefits 379,313 400,293 - -
Accrued interest 34,629 12,504 - -
Accrued self-insurance - - - -
Deferred revenue 667,388 557,043 - -
Current portion of long-term debt 5,105,000 3,920,000 91,214 68,904
Total current liabilities 6,962,348 5,941,204 104,366 8,046,299

NONCURRENT LIABILITIES

Net pension liability - 2,858,425 - -
Compensated absences 920,356 931,746 - -
Long-term debt 20,010,000 21,115,000 2,191,484 2,125,290
Unamortized debt premiums 826,683 782,263 - -
Other postemployment benefits -
health insurance 6,600,557 7,411,455 - -
Total noncurrent liabilities 28,357,596 33,098,859 2,191,484 2,125,290
Total liabilities 35,319,944 39,040,093 2,295,850 10,171,589
DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Related to pension 7,474,882 3,941,138 - -
Related to other postemployment benefits -
health insurance 434,305 651,458 - -
Total deferred inflows of resources 7,909,187 4,592 596 - -
NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 20,448,897 19,444,195 - -
Net assets with donor restrictions - - 4,560,237 4,536,530
Restricted
Student financial assistance 481,252 460,232 - -
Capital projects 1,869,963 1,362,684 - -
Debt service 2,364,940 1,585,231 - -
Net assets without donor restrictions - - 1,207,302 1,018,671
Unrestricted 9,318,035 10,112,740 - -
Total net position $ 34,868,702 $ 32,965,082 $ 5,767,539 $ 5,555,201
See accompanying notes tc the financial statements.
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SOUTHWEST WISCONSIN TECHNICAL COLLEGE

STATEMENTS OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES IN NET POSITION
Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

OPERATING REVENUES
Tuition and fees
Program fees (net of $144,347 and $138,123
scholarship allowances, respectively)
Material fees (net of $8,910 and $10,359
scholarship allowances, respectively)
Other student fees (net of $24,949 and
$25,898 scholarship allowances, respectively)
Federal grants and contracts
State grants and contracts
Non-governmental grants and contracts
Auxiliary enterprise services
Contributions and other support
Rental income

Total operating revenues
OPERATING EXPENSES

Instruction

Instructional resources
Student services

General institution

Physical plant

Auxiliary enterprise services
Depreciation

Student aid

Program activities and other

Total operating expenses
Operating loss
NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES)
State appropriations
Local property taxes
Loss on disposal of capital assets
Investment income
Interest expense
Total non-operating revenues (expenses)
Change in net position

Net position at beginning of year

Net position at end of year

Primary Government

Component Unit

2020 2019 2020 2019
$ 4,498,373 5 4441995 & -3 z
282,343 289,212 - -
790,131 839,225 . .
3,779,436 3,605,134 - -
2,556,219 2,360,193 - -
1,712,148 1,959,274 . =
1,450,747 1,534,927 . .
- - 1,420,903 1,508,141

- - 572,941 515,251
15,069,397 15,029,960 1,993,844 2,023,392
15,609,492 12,135,789 . .
126,998 149,622 - -
2,431,218 2,555,685 - -
4,987,213 4,868,969 = =
1,000,678 2,023,329 . ’
1,335,739 1,073,586 - -
3,014,303 2,846,212 - -
3,483,964 3,117,436 . =
- < 1,890,566 1,251,391
31,989,605 28,770,628 1,890,566 1,251,391
(16,920,208)  (13,740,668) 103,278 772,001
8,747,474 8,223,892 = =
10,650,000 10,761,844 - .
(40,743) (85,265) - (45,101)
219,612 432,529 109,080 197,467
(752,515) (1,213,741) = .
18,823,828 18,119,259 109,060 152,366
1,903,620 4,378,591 212,338 924,367
32,965,082 28,586,491 5,555,201 4,630,834
$34,868,702 $32065082 $ 5767539 $ 5555201

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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SOUTHWEST WISCONSIN TECHNICAL COLLEGE

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

Cash flows from operating activities
Tuition and fees received
Federal and state grants received
Business, industry and school district contract revenues received
Payments to employees for operating payroll
Payments to suppliers
Aucxiliary enterprise revenues received

Net Cash Flows from Operating Activities

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities
Local property taxes received
State appropriations received

Net Cash Flows from Non-Capital Financing Activities

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities
Acquisition and construction of capital assets
Proceeds from issuance of debt
Premium on debt issue
Debt retired
Interest paid

Net Cash Flows from Capital and Related Financing Activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Investment income received

Net Increase in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

Reconciliation of operating loss to net cash used in
operating activities
Operating loss
Adjustments to reconcile operating loss to net cash used in
operating activities:
Depreciation
Changes in assets and liabilities
Accounts receivable, net
Student accounts receivable
Due from other governments
Inventories
Prepaid expenses
Net pension liability
Accounts payable and cther current liabilities
Accrued salaries and benefits
Accrued self-insurance
Compensated absences
Unearned revenue
Post-employment benefits

Net cash used in operating activities

See accompanying notes to the financial statements.
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2020 2019
$ 5621407 $ 5546174
6,310,200 5,086,416
1,699,625 1,843,415
(18,596,917) (23,548,969)
(9,394,103) (5,612,698)
1,450,747 1,534,927
(13,409,041) (14,250,735)
10,700,922 10,451,611
8,747,474 8,223,892
19,448,396 18,675,503
(4,184,168) (3,296,261)
4,000,000 11,775,000
44,420 503,134
(3,920,000) (12,560,000)
(730,390) (1,235,745)
(4,790,138) (4,813,872)
219,612 432,529
1,468,829 43,425
14,711,032 14,667,607
$ 16,179,861 $ 14,711,032

$ (16,920,208)

3,014,303

(12,503)
(59,785)
(25,455)
102,079
(86,4786)
111,663

(275,346)
(20,980)
(441,.991)
(11,390)
110,345
1,086,723

$ (13,740,668)

2,846,212

(115,859)
(18,358)
21,089
(39,883)
(156,998)
1,140,087
(92,738)
(47,286)
(386,544)
149,750
(5,900)
(3,803,639)

$ (13,409,041)

$ (14,250,735)
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SOUTHWEST WISCONSIN TECHNICAL COLLEGE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

NOTE 1—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

The Southwest Wisconsin Technical Cellege (Southwest Tech), is comprised of five full Southwest
Wisconsin counties and portions of four others, became operational on July 1, 1967, pursuant to
Chapter 292, Laws of Wisconsin of 1965. The geegraphic area of the Southwest Tech is comprised
of mest of Crawford, Grant, lowa, Lafayette, and Richland counties and part of Dane, Green, Sauk,
and Vernen counties covering 3,800 square miles. There are 30 public K-12 scheol districts within
Southwest Tech boundaries.

Southwest Tech is governed by a nine-member District Board elected by the 30 school district
boards comprising Southwest Tech. Pursuant to Wisconsin Statute, the District Board consists of
two employer members, two employee members, three additional members, one elected official
member who holds a state or local office, and one school district administrator. Board members
serve staggered three-year terms. The District Board powers are established under the provisions
of Chapter 38 of the Wisconsin Statutes and include:

* Authority to borrow money and levy taxes;

¢ Budgetary authority; and

s Autherity over other fiscal and general management of Southwest Tech, which
includes, but is not limited to, the authority to execute contracts, to exercise
control over facilities and properties, to determine the outcome or disposition of
matters affecting the recipients of the services being provided and to approve the
hiring or retention of key management personnel who implement board policies
and directives.

The financial statements of Southwest Tech have been prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States of America as applied to government units. The
Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the accepted standard setting body for
establishing accounting and financial reporting principles.

Reporting Entity

The reporting entity of Southwest Tech consists of the primary government and its component units.
Component units are legally separate organizations for which the primary government is financially
accountable, or other organizations for which the nature and significance of their relationship with
the primary government are such that their exclusion would cause the reporting entity’s financial
statements to be misleading. The primary government is financially accountable if (1) it appoints a
voting majority of an organization's governing body and it is able to impose its will on that
organization, (2) it appoints a voting majority of an organization's governing body and there is a
potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or to impose specific financial
burdens on, the primary government, (3) the organization is fiscally dependent on and there is a
potential for the organization to provide specific financial benefits to, or to impose specific financial
burdens on, the primary government. Certain legally separate, tax exempt organizations should be
reported as a component unit if all of the following criteria are met: (1) the economic resources
received or held by the separate organization are entirely or almost entirely for the direct benefit of
the primary government or its constituents; (2) the primary government is entitled to, or has the
ability to access, a majority of the economic resources received or held by the separate
organization; and (3) the economic resources received or held by an individual organization that
the primary government is entitled to, or has the ability to otherwise access, are significant to the
primary government.
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SOUTHWEST WISCONSIN TECHNICAL COLLEGE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

NOTE 1—SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Southwest Tech is limited to investments authorized by Wisconsin State Statute 66.0803 including
the following:

1.

Time deposits in any credit union, bank, savings bank, trust company, or savings and loan
association which is authorized to transact business in the state if the time deposits mature in
not more than three years.

Bonds or securities issued or guaranteed as to principal and interest by the federal government,
or by a commission, board, or other instrumentality of the federal government.

Bonds or securities of any county, city, drainage district, technical college district, village, town,
or school district of the state, as well as bonds issued by a local exposition district, a local
professional baseball park district, a local professional football stadium district, the University
of Wisconsin Hospitals and Clinics Authority, a local cultural arts district, or the Wisconsin
Aerospace Authority.

Any security which matures or which may be tendered for purchase at the option of the holder
within not more than seven years of the date on which it is acquired, if that security has a rating
which is the highest or second highest rating category assigned by Standard & Poor's
corporation, Moody’s investors service, or other similar nationally recognized rating agency or
if that security is senior to, or on a parity with, a security of the same issuer which has such a
rating.

Securities of an open-end management investment company or investment trust, with certain

limitations:

a. Bonds or securities issued under the authority of the municipality;

b. The local government pooled-investment fund as established under Section 25.50 of the
Wisconsin Statutes; the state of Wisconsin local government investment fund (LGIP)

c. Agreements in which a public depository agrees to repay funds advanced to it by
Southwest Tech, plus interest, if the agreement is secured by bonds or securities issued
or guaranteed as to principal and interest by the federal government.

d. Securities of an open-end management investment company or investment trust, subject
to various conditions and investment options.

e. Repurchase agreements with public depositories, with certain conditions.

Inventories

Inventories of books and supplies are stated at the lower of cost or market; cost is determined using
the first-in, first-out method. Instructional and administrative inventories are expensed as incurred.

Capital Assets

Capital assets are reported at historical cost, or estimated historical cost if actual historical cost is
not available. Donated capital assets are valued at their estimated acquisition value at the time of
receipt. Interest costs incurred during construction are not capitalized and are not considered
material.
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SOUTHWEST WISCONSIN TECHNICAL COLLEGE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

NOTE 2—CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Southwest Tech cash and cash equivalents consist of the following at June 30:

2020 2019 Risk
Cash and cash equivalents:
Cash on hand $ 2,940 $ 2,940
Deposit accounts 14,945 368 13,494,135  Custodial credit
Local Government Investment Pool 1,231 553 1,213,957  Credit and interest rate
Total cash and cash equivalents $ 16,179,861 $ 14,711,032

Southwest Tech voluntarily invests excess funds in the Wisconsin Local Government Investment
Pool (LGIP), an external investment pool. The LGIP is part of the State Investment Fund (SIF) and
is managed by the State of Wisconsin Investment Board. The SIF is not registered with the
Securities and Exchange Commission but operates under the statutory autherity of Wisconsin
Chapter 25. The SIF reports the fair value of its underlying assets annually. The SIF is not rated.
Participants in the LGIP have the right to withdraw their funds in total on one day’s notice. At June
30, the fair value of the Southwest Tech’s share of the LGIP's assets was substantially equal to the
amounts reported above.

Custodial Credit Risk

Custodial credit risk for deposits is the risk that, in the event of the failure of a depository financial
institution, Southwest Tech would not be able to recover its deposits or will not be able to recover
collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside party.

The bank balances were $15,025,223 and $13,892,901 at June 30, 2020 and 2019. Deposits in
each local and area bank are insured by the FDIC in the amount of $250,000. Bank accounts and
the local government investment pool are also insured by the State Deposit Guarantee Fund in the
amount of $400,000. However, due to the relatively small size of the Guarantee Fund in relationship
to the total deposits covered and other legal implications, recovery of material principal losses may
be significant to individual organizations. As of June 30, 2020, all of the $15,025,223 bank balance
was secured by pledged securities.

For investments, custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event of failure of the counterparty (e.g.
broker-dealer) to the transaction, Southwest Tech will not be able to recover the value of its
investment or collateral securities that are in the possession of another party. Southwest Tech's
investment policy minimizes credit risk by limiting investments to the safest type of securities and
diversifying the investment portfolio. Individual securities may not exceed 5% of the market value of
the portfolio at the time of purchase with the exception of U.S. Government issues fully guaranteed
as to both principal and interest by the U.S. government or agencies thereof, shares of open-ended
investment companies, the LGIP, or the Wisconsin Investment Series Cooperative (WISC). The
LGIP and WISC do not carry a credit quality rating.

interest Rate Risk

As a means of limiting its exposure to fair value losses arising from rising interest rates, Southwest
Tech's investment policy limits the maturity of any security to no more than five years from the date
of purchase or in accordance with state and local statutes and ordinances, whichever is less. The
policy indicates that the investment portfolio should be structured so that securities mature to meet
the cash requirements for ongoing cperations, thereby avoiding the need to sell securities on the
open market prior to maturity. The policy sets a maximum duration range of two years with a target
duration of one year. As of June 30, 2020, Wisconsin Local Government Investment Pool (LGIP)
investments have a maturity of 12 months or less.
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SOUTHWEST WISCONSIN TECHNICAL COLLEGE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

NOTE 5—EMPLOYEE'S RETIREMENT SYSTEM (continued)

The Core and Variable annuity adjustments granted during recent years are as follows:

Core Fund Variable Fund
Year Adjustment (%) Adjustment (%)
2010 (1.3) 22
2011 (1.2 11
2012 (7.0) (7)
2013 (9.6) 9
2014 47 25
2015 29 2
2016 05 (5)
2017 20 4
2018 54 17
2019 0.0 (10)

Contributions. Required contributions are determined by an annual actuarial valuation in
accordance with Chapter 40 of the Wisconsin Statutes. The employee required contribution is one-
half of the actuarially determined contribution rate for General category employees, including
Teachers, Executives and Elected Officials. Starting on January 1, 2016, the Executives and
Elected Officials category was merged into the General Employee Category. Required
contributions for protective employees are the same rate as general employees. Employers are
required to contribute the remainder of the actuarially determined contribution rate. The employer
may not pay the employee required contribution unless provided for by an existing collective
bargaining agreement.

During the reporting period, the WRS recognized $800,839 contributions from the employer.
Contribution rates as of December 31, 2019, the measurement date, are as follows:

Employee Category Employee Employer

General (including teachers, executives, and

elected officials) 6.55% 6.55%
Protective with Social Security 6.55% 10.55%
Protective without Social Security 6.55% 14 95%

Pension Liabilities, Pension Expense, and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred
Inflows of Resources Related to Pensions

At June 30, 2020, Southwest Tech repeorted an asset of $2,494,865 for its proportionate share of
the net pension liability (asset). The net pension liability (asset) was measured as of December 31,
2019, and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability (asset) was determined
by an actuarial valuation as of December 31, 2018 rolled forward to December 31, 2019. No
material changes in assumptions or benefit terms occurred between the actuarial valuation date
and the measurement date. Southwest Tech's proportion of the net pension liability (asset) was
based on Southwest Tech’'s share of contributions to the pension plan relative to the contibutions
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SOUTHWEST WISCONSIN TECHNICAL COLLEGE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

NOTE 5—EMPLOYEE'S RETIREMENT SYSTEM (continued)

The target allocation and best estimates of arithmetic real rates of return for each major asset class
are summarized in the following table:

Long-Term Long-Term
Asset Expected Nominal Expected Real

Core Fund Asset Class Allocation % Rate of Return % Rate of Return %
Global Equities 49 8.0 51
Fixed Income 245 48 21
Inflation Sensitive Assets 15.5 40 12

Real Estate 9 6.3 35
Private Equity/Debt 8 106 76
Multi-Asset 4 6.9 40

Total Core Fund 110 75 46
Variable Fund Asset Class

U.S. Equities 70 75 46
International Equities 30 82 853
Total Variable Fund 100 78 49

New England Pension Consultants Long Term US CPI (Inflation) Forecast: 2.75%
Asset Allocations are managed within established ranges; target percentages may differ from actual
monthly allocations.

Single discount rate. A single discount rate of 7.00% was used to measure the total pension
liability for the current and prior year. This single discount rate is based on the expected rate of
return on pension plan investments of 7.00% and a municipal bond rate of 2.75% (Source: Fixed-
income municipal bonds with 20 years to maturity that include only federally tax-exempt municipal
bonds as reported in Fidelity Index’s “20-year Municipal GO AA Index” as of December 31, 2019.
In describing this index, Fidelity notes that the Municipal Curves are constructed using option-
adjusted analytics of a diverse population of over 10,000 tax-exempt securities.). Because of the
unique structure of WRS, the 7.00% expected rate of return implies that a dividend of approximately
1.9% will always be paid. For purposes of the single discount rate, it was assumed that the dividend
would always be paid. The projection of cash flows used to determine this single discount rate
assumed that plan member contributions will be made at the current contribution rate and that
employer contributions will be made at rates equal to the difference between actuarially determined
contribution rates and the member rate. Based on these assumptions, the pension plan’s fiduciary
net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments (including
expected dividends) of current plan members. Therefore, the municipal bond rate of return on
pension plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the
total pension liability.
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SOUTHWEST WISCONSIN TECHNICAL COLLEGE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

NOTE 6—OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued)

Net OPEB Liability

Southwest Tech's net OPEB liability was measured as of June 30, 2019, and the total OPEB liability
used to calculate the net OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of that date.

Actuarial assumptions. The total OPEB liability was determined by an actuarial valuation as of June
30, 2018, using the following actuarial assumptions, applied to all periods included in the
measurement, unless otherwise specified:

Inflation: 2.50%

Investment rate of return: 3.50% based upon all years of projected payments
discounted at a municipal bond rate of 3.50%

Healthcare cost trend rates: 7.50% decreasing by 0.50% per year down to 6.50%,

then by 0.10% per year down to 5.0%, and level thereafter.

The actuarial assumptions are based upon an experience study conducted in 2015 using Wisconsin
Retirement System (WRS) experience from 2012-2014. The projection of cash flows used to
determine the single discount rate assumed that employer contributions will be made at rates equal
to the actuarially determined contribution rates. Based on these assumptions, the OPEB plan’s
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected future benefit payments
of current plan members.

The long-term expected rate of return on OPEB plan investments. Since Southwest Tech currently
holds assets in fixed income funds or as cash equivalents, the long-term expected rate of return on
OPEB plan investments was based upon the 20-year AA municipal bond rate and applied to all
periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total OPEB liability.

Discount rate. The discount rate of 3.50% was used in calculating Southwest Tech’s OPEB
liabilities (based upon all projected payments discounted at a long-term expected rate of return of
3.50%).

This rate is equivalent to the Bond Buyer G.O. 20-year AA Bond Index published by the Federal
Reserve as of the week of the measurement date. Based on those assumptions, the OPEB plan’'s
fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make all projected OPEB payments for
current active and inactive employees. Therefore, the long-term expected rate of return on OPEB
plan investments was applied to all periods of projected benefit payments to determine the total
OPEB liability.

33



SOUTHWEST WISCONSIN TECHNICAL COLLEGE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

NOTE 6—OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued)

Changes in the Net OPEB Liability

Increases
(Decreases) in
Net OPEB
Liability
Balances at 6/30/2019 $ 4,471,553
Changes for the year:
Service Cost 4,761
Interest 157,909
Changes of assumptions
or other input 46,962
Benefit payments (526,073)
Net changes (316,441)
Balances at 6/30/2020 $ 4,155,112

Sensitivity of the net OFEB liability to changes in the discount rate. The following presents the net
OPERB liability of Southwest Tech, as well as what Southwest Tech's net OPEB liability would be if
it were calculated using a discount rate that is 1-percentage point lower (2.50 percent) or 1-
percentage-point higher (4.50 percent) than the current discount rate:

1% Decrease to Current 1% Increase to
Discount Rate Discount Rate Discount Rate
(2.50%) (3.50%) (4.50%)
Total OPEB Liability 3 4,357,953 3 4155112 3 3,975,204

Sensitivity of the net OPEB liability to changes in the healthcare cost trend rates. The following
presents the net OPEB liability of the District, as well as, what the District’'s net OPEB liability would
be if it were calculated using healthcare cost trend rates that are 1-percentage-point lower (6.5
percent decreasing to 4.0 percent) or 1-percentage-point higher (8.5 percent decreasing to 6.0
percent) than the current healthcare cost trend rates:

Healthcare
1% Decrease Cost Trend Rates 1% Increase
(6.5% decreasing (7.5% decreasing (8.9% decreasing
to 4.0%) to 5.0%) to 6.0%)
Total OPEB Liability 3 4125783 3 4155112 3 4,183,380
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SOUTHWEST WISCONSIN TECHNICAL COLLEGE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

NOTE 6—0OTHER POST-EMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (continued)

OPEB Expense and Deferred Outflows of Resources and Deferred Inflows of Resources
Related to OPEB

For the year ended June 30, 2020, Southwest Tech recognized OPEB expense of $42,742. At June
30, 2020, Southwest Tech reported deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of
resources related to OPEB from the following sources:

Deferred Outflows Deferred Inflows
of Resources of Resources
Differences between expected and actual
experience 3 - $ 341,766
Changes in assumptions or other inputs 35,221 92,539
Employer contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 690,081 -
Total $ 725,302 $ 434,305

$690,081 reported as deferred outflows related to OPEB resulting from Southwest Tech's
contributions subsequent to the measurement date will be recognized as a reduction of the net
pension liability in the year ended June 30, 2021. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows and
deferred inflows of resources related to OPEB will be recognized in OPEB expense as follows:

Year ended June 30:

2021 $ (205,412)
2022 (205,411)
2023 11,739

$ (399,084)

In addition to Southwest Tech’'s OPEB plan, the employee fringe benefit program included a
provision for employees hired prior to July 1, 20086, which allowed academic, administrative, and
support staff to be carried with the group insurance plan or plans at their own expense after
retirement or layoff. However, Southwest Tech would continue to pay health insurance premiums
based on the type of employee and years of service or number of accumulated hours of sick leave.
These benefits are financed on a pay-as-you-go basis. Southwest Tech’s accrual for retiree sick
leave was 32,445,445 and $2,939,902 at June 30, 2020 and 2018.

NOTE 7—COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

Southwest Tech has received federal and state grants for specific purposes that are subject to
review and audit by the granter agencies. Such audits could lead to request for reimbursements to
the grantor agency for expenditures disallowed under terms of the grants. Management believes
such disallowances, if any, would be immaterial.
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SOUTHWEST WISCONSIN TECHNICAL COLLEGE
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
As of and for the Years Ended June 30, 2020 and 2019

NOTE 7—COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (continued)

From time to time Southwest Tech is party to various pending claims and legal proceedings.
Although the outcome of such matters cannot be forecasted with certainty, it is the opinion of
management and Southwest Tech’s legal counsel that the likelihood is remote that any such claims
or proceedings will have a material adverse effect on the Southwest Tech’s financial position.

Operating Leases

Southwest Tech leases various facilities as outreach center to offer Adult Basic Education,
GED/HSED and other course options. Current facilities are located in Richland Center, Fennimore,
Dodgeville, Platteville and Darlington.

Future minimum lease payments for the year ending June 30 are as follows:

2021 $ 77,960
2022 60,000
2023 61,798
2024 59,937
2025 20,867
Thereafter 186,717
Total future minimum lease payments 3 467,279

NOTE 8—RISK MANAGEMENT

Districts Mutual Insurance Company (DMI)

In July 2004 all sixteen WTCS technical colleges created Districts Mutual Insurance Company
(DM ). Districts Mutual Insurance Company is a fully-assessable mutual company authorized under
Wisconsin Statute 611 to provide property, casualty, and liability insurance and risk management
services to its members. The scope of insurance protection provided by DMI is broad, covering
property at $350,000,000 per occurrence; general liability, auto, and educators' legal liability at
$5,000,000 per occurrence; and workers' compensation at the statutorily required limits.

At this time, settled claims have not approached the coverage limits as identified above. Southwest
Tech's exposure to its layer of insurance is limited to its deductible amounts, which vary by
coverage from $2,500 to $100,000 per occurrence. DMI purchases reinsurance for losses in excess
of its retained layer of coverage.

DMI operations are governed by a five-member board of directors. Member colleges do not
exercise any control over the activities of DM| beyond election of the board of directors at the annual
meeting. The board has the authority to adopt its own budget, set policy matters, and control the
financial affairs of the company.

Each member college is assessed an annual premium. Future premiums will be based on relevant
rating exposure bases as well as the historical loss experience by members. DMI's ongoing
operational expenses, other than loss adjustment expenses, are apportioned pro rata to each
participant based on equity interest inthe company. Since DMI is fully capitalized, member districts
have not been assessed a capitalization amount for fiscal years 2020 and 2018.

The DMI financial statements can be obtained through Districts Mutual Insurance Co., 212 W.
Pinehurst Trail, Dakota Dunes, SD 57049.
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SOUTHWEST WISCONSIN TECHNICAL COLLEGE
SCHEDULE OF CHANGES IN NET OPER LIABILITY AND RELATED RATIOS
Last 10 Fiscal Years*

Total OPEB Liability
Service cost
Interest
Changes of benefit terms
Differences between expected and actual experience
Changes in assumptions or other input
Benefit payments

Net Change in OPEB Liability
Total OPEB liability at beginning
Total OPEB liability at ending
Covered payroll

OPEB liability as a percentage of covered payroll

2019 2018 2017

4,761 s 93,739 93,739
157,909 226,102 232,922

- (1,262,091) :

= (683,532) -

46,052 (185,079) -
(526,073) (261,530) (781,544)
(316,441) (2,072,391) (454,883)
4,471,553 6,543,944 6,008,827
4155112  $ 4,471,553 6,543,944
11,191,670 11,191,670 2,561,028
37.13% 39.95% 255.52%

*This schedule is presented to illustrate the requirement to show information for 10 years. However, until a full 10 year

trend is compiled, governments should present information for those years for which information is available.

See accompanying notes to the required supplementary information.
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SOUTHWEST WISCONSIN TECHNICAL COLLEGE
GENERAL FUND
SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES, AND CHANGES
IN FUND BALANCE - BUDGET AND ACTUAL (NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS)
Year Ended June 30, 2020 with Comparative Totals for the Year Ended 2019

REVENUES
Local government - tax levy
Intergovernmental revenue
State
Federal
Tuition and fees
Statutory program fees
Materials fees
Other student fees
Institutional

Total revenues

EXPENDITURES
Current:
Instruction
Instructional resources
Student services
General institutional
Physical plant

Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

OTHER FINANCING SOURCES (USES)
Transfers in
Transfers out

Total other financing sources (uses)
Net change in fund balance

Fund balance at beginning of year
Fund balance at end of year
FUND BALANCE

Nonspendable - prepaid expenses
Assigned for state aid fluctuations
Assigned for post employment benefits
Unassigned

Total fund balance

2020 2019
Actual ona Variance Actual
Criginal Final Budgetary with Final (Budgetary

Budget Budget Basis Budget Basis)
$5343000 $5343,000 $ 5305000 $ (38000 $ 5,416,344
10,451,100 10,451,100 10,762,965 311,865 10,014,879
647,200 647,200 799,525 152,325 715,192
4,551,400 4,551,400 4,498,373 (53,027) 4,441 995
291,000 291,000 282,343 (8,657) 289,212
567,700 567,700 522,807 (44,893) 575,649
1,654,600 1,654,600 1,775,918 121,318 2,145,015
23,506,000 23,506,000 23,946,931 440,931 23,598,786
14,907,000 14,907,000 13,974,073 932,927 15,020,315
173,000 173,000 126,998 46,002 149,622
1,999,000 1,999,000 2,043,777 44,777) 2,162,174
4,994,000 4,994,000 4,987,213 8,787 4,868,969
2,092,000 2,092,000 1,878,757 213,243 2,023,329
24,165,000 24,165,000 23,010,818 1,154,182 24,224 409
(659,000) (659,000) 936,113 1,595,113 (625,623)
310,000 310,000 218,244 (91,756) 172,292
(45,000) (45,000) (48,044) (3,044) (44,436)
265,000 265,000 170,200 (94,800) 127,856
(394,000) (394,000) 1,106,313 1,500,313 (497,767)
8,528,904 8,528,904 8,931,137 402,233 9,428,904
58134904 $8,134904 $10,037,450 $1902546 $ 8,931,137

371,991
200,000
4,882,846

4,582,613
8 10,087,450
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D. Bid: Chevrolet Malibu Sedans

Bids were sought for three new 2021 Chevrolet Malibu 4-door LS sedans to

be used in the Driver's Education program. All in-district Chevrolet

dealerships received notice of the bid. The public bid opening was held on

December 18, 2020, with two vendors responding to the bid. Caleb White will

present a summary of the bids received, which are included below.
Recommendation: Award the new 2021 Chevrolet Malibu 4-door LS Sedans (3) bid in
the amount of $56,700 to Ewald Automotive Group, Oconomowoc, WI.

Bid #2021-03 New 2021 Chevrolet Malibu 4 door LS Sedans (3)
December 18, 2020, 2:00 p.m. via Zoom

Invitations to bid on the New 2021 Chevrolet Malibu 4 door LS Sedans (3) for Southwest Tech’s
Driver’s Education Program were sent to all district Chevrolet dealerships.

Public opening of the bids was held on Friday, December 18, 2020, at 2:00 p.m. via Zoom. Two
vendors responded to the bid request. The results are as follows:

Vendor Location Total Bid Comments
Ewald Automotive Group Oconomowoc, WI | $56,700 12-14 weeks for delivery of
vehicles
Runde Chevrolet Platteville, WI $57,681 1-2 months (4-9 weeks) for
delivery of vehicles

RECOMMENDATION: Award the New 2021 Chevrolet Malibu 4 door LS Sedans (3) bid in the
amount of $56,700 to Ewald Automotive Group, Oconomowoc, WI.
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E. Ad Hoc Board Committee(s)

In December the Board expressed interest in retaining the president and a new
four-year contract was signed. The Board committed to establishing a Sub
Committee under Board Policy 1.11 to explore retention mechanisms. An initial
sub-committee proposal is outlined below.
Recommendation. Approve the formation of an ad hoc sub-committee to explore a
long-term retention mechanism for the President.

Proposal:

Ad Hoc Committee: President Long-Term Retention Options

Committee Charge: The small group, not to exceed four members of the Board, will
meet with the President to outline several retention mechanisms to keep the President
at the college long-term.

Committee Membership: As appointed by the Board Chair during the January 2021
meeting.

Responsibility: The group will recommend options for full Board consideration at the
April 2021 meeting in conjunction with the annual review of the President’s performance
evaluation. Monthly updates will be provided during the interim. After the April meeting,
the work of the committee will be concluded, and the ad hoc committee discontinued.
The full board is not obligated to approve the recommendations of the ad hoc
committee.
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Board Monitoring of College Effectiveness

A. Foundation Quarterly Update

Kim Schmelz, Director of External Relations & Alumni Development, will present
a quarterly Foundation report to the Board highlighting the activities and results
of fundraising efforts and other initiatives. The FY21 Second Quarter report is
available below.

Southwest Tech Foundation and SWTC Real Estate Foundation (REF)
FY21 Second Quarter Report to District Board
January 28, 2021

e FY21 Fundraising Totals 7/1/20-12/31/20
0 $795,903.20 total gifts received (FY21 goal is 51,000,000)
" $646,843.35 cash received (FY21 goal is $800,000)
= $149,059.85 Gift In-Kind total
0 3,208 total gifts (FY20 total was 6,427)
0 790 total donors (FY20 total was 1,074)

e Gift Highlights — Thank you!

0 $150,000 from Patrick Thiele for the James and Grace Thiele Scholarship
$127,780.00 Gift-in-Kind from Sloan Implement for the Agriculture Department
$30,108.75 from Daryl Tresner to establish the Daryl Tresner Endowed
Scholarship
$25,000 from Bill Huff for the Bill Huff Scholarship
$10,000 from Brad and Peggy Biddick for the Brad and Peggy Biddick Scholarship
$10,000 from the Gene Haas Foundation for CNC students and the program
$7,500 from 3M for 3M MAP Scholarships
$5,500 from Community First Bank for the Support our Students (S.0.S) Fund
$5,000 from Alliant Energy for the Chargers Cupboard
$5,000 from Jean Rossard for Dairy Goat Herd Management and Student Support
Funds

o O

O O 0O 0O 0O oo
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o O

$5,000 from Karen Knox for the Charger Annual Fund

$5,000 Gift-in-Kind from Ritchie Implement Inc for the Agriculture Department
$3,000 from Hartung Brothers for the Ag Development Fund

$3,000 from Joan Senn for Phi Theta Kappa Scholarhip and the Innovation of the
Year Fund

$2,500 from Deb Wehrle for the Greg Wehrle Memorial Scholarship

$2,500 from Sielaff Corporation for the Charger Annual Fund

$2,500 from Patrick Thiele for S.0.S. Fund, Charger Dream and Chargers
Cupboard

e Appeals/Requests as of 12/31/20

(0]

o
o

Phonathon — $42,961.71 received at the end of the fall phonathon (FY21 goal is
$65,000).
Giving Tuesday - $4,060 raised for the Charger Dream Fund from 44 donors.
IHeartSWTC Employee Giving Campaign
= 90.31% of all full-time (170) and part-time (7) staff gave a donation; 93%
of full-time employees
= 73% of full-time and part-time employees (143 employees) give with
continual payroll deduction — surpassing our goal of 140
= $34,20.06 new total of continual payroll gifts (amt given/payroll)
= 15 employees gave for the first time
= 12 new endowments created - individual and group
= 5 new pass-thru scholarships

e Scholarships

o
o
o

14 new scholarship funds have been established since July 1, 2020
Scholarship application for 2021-22 — open now through March 31, 2021
2020-21 projected scholarship awards = $378,115.73. That is 592 scholarships
with 464 individual students receiving scholarships.

e FY21 Fundraising Priorities

(0]

(0]

Funding for Diversity, Equity, and Inclusivity — increase the number/percentage
of students/faculty/staff of color

Funding for Diversity, Equity, and Inclusivity — increase programming to sustain
the conversation, learning moments, and policy development

Create more endowed scholarships — offer the same amount of scholarships
from endowment funding as is currently being provided by pass-through funds
Create a student support endowment — offer the same level of support we are
currently providing with annual investments

Create operating flexibility in case the financial situation worsens considerably
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Real Estate Foundation
0 112 leases for spring semester 2020-21 as of 1/21. (Compared to 116 in fall
semester.)
0 Loan refinancing complete for current loans with Mound City Bank and
MidWestOne Bank to extend term; interest rate was lowered for Mound City
Bank loan.

News Releases

Knutson secures career with Pokemon Company International

Thiele Scholarship expands to Wauzeka-Steuben graduates

Supply Chain Management degree points graduate in a new direction
Winters succeeds in Health Information Technology program



https://www.swtc.edu/news/press-releases/knutson-secures-career-with-pokemon-company-international/#.YACg_ehKiUk
https://www.swtc.edu/news/press-releases/thiele-scholarship-expands-to-wauzeka-steuben-graduates/#.YAChQOhKiUk
https://www.swtc.edu/news/press-releases/supply-chain-management-degree-points-graduate-in-a-new-direction/#.YAChhehKiUk
https://www.swtc.edu/news/press-releases/winters-succeeds-in-health-information-technology-program/#.YAChruhKiUk
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B. Board Monitoring Report - Safety & Security

Included below is the Safety & Security Board Monitoring Report. The focus of this
report is on strategic initiatives related to physical and cyber safety and security. Dan
Imhoff, Director of Facilities, Safety & Security, and Heath Ahnen, Director of
Information Technology Services, will present the report.

Board Monitoring Report
Safety and Security
January 28, 2021

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Alignment with Mission, Vision, Values, and Purposes

Southwest Wisconsin Technical College has a proud history of providing a safe learning
environment for our students and a safe workplace for our faculty and staff. The safety of
our students and employees is important to us. A wide variety of policies and procedures
have been developed over the years to ensure the health and safety of students,
employees, and visitors to the campus. In addition, we comply with constantly emerging and
evolving federal and state laws which are increasingly complex. Every member of our
campus community plays an integral role in both the safety and security of the campus;
therefore, it is important that we provide them with the training and tools they need to help
keep Southwest Tech the safe and inviting place it has always been.

Alignment with Strategic Directions

Campus safety and cyber security directly affect all college operations. There are indirect
connections to each of our three strategic directions. When our teaching spaces are safe,
learning improves. As employees feel safe in their work environment, productivity
increases. When people look out for the welfare of each other, our culture is enhanced.
Taking steps to ensure people's safety shows that you care about them as human beings.
Individuals who feel cared for are more likely to have a positive attitude toward the people
they work with and the institution. When they feel safer and more secure, distractions are
removed that can undermine their productivity and help them reach their full potential.
People are also more likely to attend and collaborate with an institution who has a
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reputation for ensuring the safety of all of their stakeholders. All of these factors help us
engage students and helps them stay focused on their education and what they need to do
to succeed.

Competitive Positioning Statement

Providing a safe environment gives Southwest Tech an advantage in recruiting and
retaining both students and employees. In order to maintain our competitive advantage, it is
imperative the college continues to train people in how to avoid an emergency or how to
respond in a crisis situation. The threats to the college constantly evolve and it is important
to make sure our plans and procedures are updated. The quality of our plan depends on
continual professional development as well as debriefing our response after trainings or real
emergency situations.

RECOGNIZING AND VALUING PEOPLE

Core Emergency Response Team (CERT)

The CERT is a group of appointed Southwest Tech administrators and staff who are
responsible for making decisions regarding crisis situations that affect Southwest Tech
community members. The CERT meets regularly throughout the year to plan and
participate in crisis simulations. Crisis response plans and procedures are regularly
updated to reflect the latest industry best practices. Debrief meetings are held after all
incidents to evaluate the campus’s response and provide updates. The CERT is led by the
Director of Facilities, Safety and Security and includes key college personal selected based
on their background and known abilities. The tasks performed as a CERT member are in
addition to their regular duties at the college. These people are quick to respond when
needed and must make difficult decisions usually under intense pressure when the team is
together, these decisions are made knowing they will be second guessed or critiqued by
outsiders but these people are willing to make and stand behind the choices they make.

The CERT members are: Caleb White, Katie Garrity, Kris Wubben, Karl Sandry, Katie
Glass, Heath Ahnen, Brian Kitelinger, Krista Weber, Josh Bedward, Connie Haberkorn,
Tom Kretschman, and Dan Imhoff.

Emergency Response Team (ERT)

When the situation at the scene requires additional support or impacts the College’s day-to-
day operations, the ERT will be called upon by the CERT. The ERT is activated to aid in
external coordination and securing additional resources. They are there to provide
direction, control, and coordination of college forces to include liaison with any and all
outside agencies/entities as appropriate, as well as to provide emergency information and
direction to the occupants of the campus during an emergency. The ERT meets regularly
throughout the year to plan and participate in crisis simulations. Personnel are selected
based on their background and known abilities. The tasks performed as an ERT member
are in addition to their regular duties at the college. During the early phases of our COVID
response this team puts in long hours formulating plans, securing materials, and setting the
tone for the college’s response.
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ERT members are: Heath Ahnen, Ken Bartz, Josh Bedward, Karen Campbell, Amy
Campbell, Holly Clendenen, Derek Dachelet, Dave Friesen, Katie Garrity, Katie Glass,
Connie Haberkorn, Dan Imhoff, Denise Janssen, Cynde Larsen, Kim Maier, Jody Millin,
Kelly Kelly, Brian Kitelinger, Jake Mootz, Stephanie Brown, Danielle Seippel, Lori
Needham, Nicole Nelson, Karl Sandry, Annetta Smith, Ken Straka, Brandon Wallin, Toby
Washburn, Krista Weber, Caleb White, Jason Wood, and Kris Wubben.

COVID Response

During these unprecedented times, the college has relied on two emergency response
teams to determine the college’s best course for action. These teams are the COVID
Operations and COVID Policy teams. COVID operations have been tasked with monitoring
the COVID environment, creating strategic return plans, focusing on day-to-day activities,
making decisions and providing recommendations on large scale topics to the COVID
Policy group. The Policy group is focusing on the holistic view of the campus environment
and making decisions on broad strategic directions and policies related to the pandemic
response. These teams worked together to develop and implement the college’s Bounce
Back Plan.

COVID Response members are: Heath Ahnen, Karen Campbell, Holly Clendenen Derek
Dachelet, Katie Garrity, Katie Glass, Connie Haberkorn, Robin Hamel, Dan Imhoff, Cynde
Larsen, Kim Maier, Nicole Nelson, Krista Weber, Caleb White, Jason Wood, and Kris
Wubben.

Safety Coordinator

The college recognizes the importance of safety throughout campus and as a way to
improve safety has instituted a Safety Coordinator position. This position is filled by Brian
Kitelinger. Brian is tasked with making safety an ever-present part of the Southwest Tech
culture through the creation, implementation, and training of college safety procedures and
policies. He works to enhance college safety programs and make college safety an integral
part of Southwest Tech’s culture through trainings and safety checks. Some of the issues
Brian has worked on this past year include: The “See something, say something” campaign
and COVID compliance checks.

Occupational Safety and Health Administration (OSHA) Audits

As a college, we recognize that prevention is the best way to avoid most injuries and
medical emergencies. Based on this knowledge, a plan has been implemented for monthly
audits of shop and lab spaces. These monthly audits are in addition to the annual audit
performed by Districts Mutual Insurance. Josh Bedward and Brian Kitelinger are leading
this initiative and have done a great job working with the staff and instructors in not only
pointing out the deficiencies but also working on corrective solutions. This is a new initiative
and it will be interesting to see how much different DMI's audit looks next year.

Behavioral Intervention Team (BIT)

A behavioral intervention team (BIT) is a multi-disciplinary group whose purpose is meeting
regularly to support our students via concerns reports issued by faculty and staff. The team
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tracks “red flags” over time, detecting patterns, trends, and disturbances in individual or
group behavior. The team will help guide the individual or group to the resources they
need to prevent the identified issue from worsening. Referral resources may include the
College on-campus staff mental health counselor or outside entities who can serve the
students’ needs. Each member of the team has received training from The National
Behavioral Intervention Team Association, which is the nationally recognized standard in
this area. The BIT members are Gina Trollop, Stephanie Brown, Melissa Klinkhammer, Kris
Wubben, Robin Hamel and Dan Imhoft.

Student Security

The college has recently started a student security officer program. This program is
overseen by Tom Kretschman and is staffed by six current Criminal Justice students. The
students are unarmed and patrol campus on a rotating schedule. Officer tasks include
building safety inspections, fire safety inspections (extinguishers, emergency lighting,
means of egress), medical kit & AED inspections/stocking, emergency pre-incident plans,
and providing assistance to stakeholders in emergency situations. The program provides
the students with real world experience while providing the college with a consistent
security presence.

Campus Security Assessments

Each year, as a final project, the Criminal Justice program students are assigned the
project of creating security assessments for a campus building. The students are split into
groups and assigned a building for them to review and identify potential security risks.

After the assessments are completed, the students present their finding to instructors - Tom
Kretschman and Gary Roberts and Director of Facilities - Dan Imhoff. Tom, Gary, Brian
Kitelinger, and Dan meet and review both the presentation and the report turned in by the
team to determine the validity of the students’ findings and if the college has the means to
address them.

Campus Cybersecurity Incident Response Team (CIRT)

The incident response team is a group of IT professionals from Southwest Tech’s
Information Technology Services team formed to address cyber security incidents. Their
responsibility may include, but is not limited to, analysis, isolation of threats, and
communication to stakeholders, business continuity, service restoration and call center
support. The CIRT members are Director of Information Technology Services - Heath
Ahnen and IT staff - Matthew Baute, Dave Friesen, John Troxel, Jake Wienkes, Jake
Mootz, Jamish Patel, Tyler Horton and Bob Thompson.
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PRESENTATION OF THE D

1. Workers Compensations Statistics

ATA

Policy Year Claims Total Incurred Open Claims Total Reserve
7/1/2017 - 2018 3 $6,607 0 1]
7/1/2018 - 2019 3 $1,024 0 S0

7/1/2019 - 2020 4 $2477.76 0 S0
2.
Safety and Security Goals 2017- 2018-2019 2019-2020 2020-2021
2018
Security Incidents 0 1 0 0 0
(student or employee)
Worker Compensation 0.71 1.00 1.01 .97 .68
Mod Factor
Number of Class/Type A, 0 24 13 16 19
B, C student incidents
Type A: Injuries reported 0 22 12 13 16
requiring limited or no
medical attention
Type B: Incidents requiring 0 2 1 2 2
immediate medical
attention with little follow-
up (stitched, moderate
burns)
Type C: Incidents that 0 0 0 1 1
require immediate medical
attention and prolonged
treatment (broken bones,
torn ligaments, amputation)

STRENGTHS

1. The willingness of such a large group of employees to join the various safety and
security teams and committees on campus shows the employee commitment that is
necessary to create a safe campus.

2. The college’s emergency response plan has been reviewed by DMI and is viewed
as a strength. DMI also praised the college for having regular meetings and training
for both the Core Emergency Response Team (CERT) and the Emergency
Response Team (ERT).

3. Internal alignment has been improved with the creation of councils, health

indicators, and strategic initiatives.
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WEAKNESSES

1. Although the Student Security Officer program adds a level of security to the college, the
lack of sworn law enforcement officers is a known weakness to campus.

2. Infant stages of campus-wide Cyber Security Awareness Training and Information Security
Policy development.

3. Given the nature of remote work required as part of COVID-19 pandemic, additional risks
exist for employee's endpoints and the security posture of those network environments they
may be connecting from.

STRATEGIC INITIATIVES DESIGNED TO IMPROVE OUR PERFORMANCE

1. Installation of a new security camera system to fully integrate all campus cameras to one
system and increase coverage.

2. The College has continued an employee safety training program. This program is
highlighted by a full day of safety training during the spring in-service. Past training
sessions included cyber security, drug identification, situational awareness, and classroom
management.

3. Information Technology Services (ITS) developed and implemented Acceptable Use Policy
to ensure users are aware of appropriate usage of SWTC resources. ITS continues to put
in place to measures to protect SWTC data and network resources. ITS is working on
additional documentation in the near will future that will include risk assessments, intrusion
detection and disaster recovery.

4. Information Technology Services (ITS) is working on continuing the rollout of Cybersecurity
Awareness training and communication to campus. This offering includes access for
faculty, staff and students. These online training modules will assist in educating the SWTC
community members and is a critical component for security of the SWTC infrastructure.
The training will include routine and ongoing training for the Southwest Tech community
members in how to detect and what measures can be taken to protect the organization.
This program’s inception was October 2017 as part of Cybersecurity Awareness Month. ITS
continues to expand training by offering departmental and work unit training sessions in
2021 scheduled onsite, if possible.

5. Information Technology Services (ITS) implemented a high-availability virtual private
network (VPN) to allow secure remote access to SWTC resources and Internet URL
security scanning for SWTC remote users.

6. Information Technology Services (ITS) will complete the implementation of Next Generation
Endpoint Security. The implementation of the solution integrates with existing SWTC
hardware and systematically reduce vulnerabilities all while minimizing impact on SWTC
end users. By implementing, SWTC will minimize threats and continue to uphold industry
standards in threat detection and prevention.

Appendices
1. Appendix A — Campus Safety Report / Clery Report 2020

2. Appendix B - Infectious Disease Response Plan
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Appendix A — Campus Safety Report/Clery Report 2020

The Campus Safety Report/Clery Report is completed by Dan Imhoff, Director of Facilities,

Safety & Security.
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https://www.swtc.edu/uploadedpdfs/about/clery-act-2020.pdf
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Appendix B — Infectious Disease Response Plan
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C. Staffing Update

Krista Weber, Chief Human Resources Officer, will provide an update on College
staffing. A summary follows.
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Information and Correspondence

A. Enrollment Report

1. FTE Comparison YOY Report
2. Fall 2021 Application Report

The 2020-21 Comparison Enrollment Report and Fall 2021 Application Report are below.

2019-2020 and 2020-2021 FTE Comparison
Program 01-20-20 01-18-21 Student 01-20-20 01-18-21 FTE

Code Program Title Students Students Change FTE FTE Change

10-101-1 Accounting
10-006-7 Agribusiness Science & Technology - AgBus Mgmt
10-006-5 Agribusiness Science & Technology - Agronomy
10-006-6 Agribusiness Science & Technology - Animal Science
10-102-3 Business Management
710-530-5 Cancer Information Management
10-504-X Criminal Justice
10-316-1 Culinary Arts
10-317-1 Culinary Management
10-510-6 Direct Entry Midwife
10-307-1 Early Childhood Education
10-620-1 Electro-Mechanical Technology
10-325-1 Golf Course Management
10-201-2 Graphic And Web Design
710-530-1 Health Information Technology
”'10-520-3 Human Services Associate
10-825-1 Individualized Technical Studies
10-620-3 Instrumentation and Controls Technology
10-150-2 IT-Network Specialist
10-196-1 Leadership Development
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Program
Code
10-513-1
" 10-543-1
" 10-524-1
10-182-1

31-101-1
30-531-6
31-006-3
32-070-1
31-405-1
32-404-2
31-408-1
30-443-1
31-475-1
31-307-1
30-420-2
31-502-1
30-504-2
31-317-1
30-508-2
30-812-1
31-413-2
50-413-2
30-531-3
32-080-4
31-080-6
32-080-3
31-080-3
31-080-2
32-080-6
31-080-7
50-413-1
31-620-1
31-154-6

01-20-20 01-18-21 Student 01-20-20 01-18-21 FTE
Program Title Students Students Change FTE FTE Change
Medical Laboratory Technician 20 21 1 16.10 14.57 (1.53)
Nursing-Associate Degree 208 226 18 107.30 127.37 20.07
Physical Therapist Assistant 40 31 9) 24.20 18.87 (5.33)
Supply Chain Management 44 25 (19) 25.53 11.60 (13.93)
Total Associate Degree 1,073 1,097 24 682.30 655.70 (26.60)
Accounting Assistant 5 14 9 2.20 6.57 4.37
Advanced EMT 9 (9) 1.20 (1.20)
Agribusiness Science & Technology - Agronomy Tech 1 1 1.13 1.13
Agricultural Power & Equipment Technician 34 35 1 32.40 33.10 0.70
Auto Collision Repair & Refinish Technician 11 11 - 5.87 8.07 2.20
Automotive Technician 26 34 8 24.13 23.23 (0.90)
Bricklaying & Masonry 3 (3) 1.33 (1.33)
Building Maintenance & Construction 3 1 (2) 0.70 0.07 (0.63)
Building Trades-Carpentry 11 9 (2) 9.27 8.13 (1.13)
Child Care Services 9 4 (5) 4.23 2.70 (1.53)
CNC Machine Operator/Programmer 8 2 (6) 8.17 1.33 (6.83)
Cosmetology 28 20 (8) 19.33 13.87 (5.47)
Criminal Justice-Law Enforcement 720 Academy 17 14 (3) 12.23 9.33 (2.90)
Culinary Specialist 3 (3) 1.47 (1.47)
Dental Assistant 16 11 (5) 8.87 5.57 (3.30)
Driver and Safety Education Certification 21 19 (2) 4.70 4.10 (0.60)
Electrical Power Distribution 45 44 (1) 43.83 41.17 (2.67)
Electricity (Construction) Apprentice 19 20 1 2.47 3.10 0.63
Emergency Medical Technician 49 89 40 8.47 14.23 5.77
Farm Operations & Management - Ag Mechanics 2 9 7 1.67 7.40 5.73
Farm Operations & Management - Crop Operations 2 1 (1) 0.37 0.07 (0.30)
Farm Operations & Management - Dairy 18 8 (10) 17.07 5.97 (11.10)
Farm Operations & Management - Dairy Technician 3 3 - 0.87 0.67 (0.20)
Farm Operations & Management - Farm Ag Maintenance 13 4 (9) 5.67 2.40 (3.27)
Farm Operations & Management - Livestock 1 1 - 0.97 1.03 0.07
Farm Operations & Management - Livestock Tech 3 (3) 1.77 (1.77)
Industrial Electrician Apprentice 8 10 2 1.33 1.67 0.33
Industrial Mechanic 2 3 1 1.53 2.83 1.30
IT-Computer Support Technician 18 11 (7) 12.77 7.77 (5.00)
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Program 01-20-20 01-18-21 Student 01-20-20 01-18-21
Code Program Title Students Students Change FTE FTE
31-513-1 Laboratory Science Technician 4 5 1 2.13 2.27 0.13
50-620-1 Mechatronics Technician Apprentice 6 6 - 1.60 1.33 (0.27)
31-509-1 Medical Assistant 33 43 10 24.57 34.27 9.70
31-530-2 Medical Coding Specialist 58 90 32 25.97 34.80 8.83
30-504-4 Nail Technician 3 2 (1) 0.87 0.87 -
30-543-1 Nursing Assistant 152 188 36 21.67 24.07 2.40
50-427-5 Plumbing Apprentice 20 18 (2) 3.52 2.48 (1.04)
31-504-5 Security Operations 2 1 (1) 1.20 0.70 (0.50)
31-182-1 Supply Chain Assistant 3 4 1 0.37 2.63 2.27
31-442-1 Welding 46 54 8 31.00 40.83 9.83
Total Technical Diploma 714 789 75 347.75 349.74 1.99
20-800-1 Liberal Arts - Associate of Arts 24 31 7 8.60 9.60 1.00
20-800-2 Liberal Arts - Associate of Science 9 12 3 4.73 3.33 (1.40)
Undeclared Majors 517 467 (50) 90.30 83.83 (6.47)
Total Liberal Arts & Undeclared Majors 550 510 (40) 103.63 96.77 (6.87)
Total 2,337 2,396 59 1,133.68 1,102.21 (31.47)
Percent of Change -2.78%
Vocational Adult (Aid Codes 42-47) 2,489 2,296 (193) 53.73 49.26 (4.47)
Community Services (Aid Code 60) - 48 48 - 0.16 0.16
Basic Skills (Aid Codes 73,74,75,76) 258 142 (116) 27.13 23.00 (4.13)
Basic Skills (Aid Codes 77 & 78) 674 302 (372) 36.57 11.33 (25.23)
Grand Total 5,758 5,184 (574) 1,251.11 1,185.96 (65.15)
Total Percent of Change -5.21%
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Fall 2021 Application Report

Program Application Comparison 2020/21 vs. 2021/22

01/14/20 01/20/21
PROGRAM CAP IP  [ACCEPT| TOTAL IP |ACCEPT| TOTAL YOy
Accounting 14 14 7 7 -7
Accounting Assistant 2 1 1 -1
Agribusiness Science & Technology - Agbus Mgmt 20 6 8 8 2
Agribusiness Science & Technology - Agronomy 20 3 8 8 5
Agribusiness Science & Technology - Agronomy Tech 20 1 0 0 -1
Agribusiness Science & Technology - Animal Science 20 17 17 22 22 5
Agricultural Power & Equipment Technician 22 25 25 15 15 -10
Auto Collision Repair & Refinish Technician 22 14 14 12 12 -2
Automotive Technician 22 28 28 15 15 -13
Building Trades-Carpentry 20 17 17 14 14 -3
Business Management 25 25 10 11 21 -4
Cancer Information Management 7 47 54 12 38 50 -4
Child Care Services 13 7 7 3 3 6 -1
CNC Machine Operator/Programmer 15 0 0 0 0 0
Cosmetology 24 12 12 16 16 4
Criminal Justice Studies 48 29 29 11 11 -18
Criminal Justice-Law Enforcement 2 15 15 15
Culinary Arts 3 3 -3
Culinary Management 0 0 0
Dental Assistant 18 20 20 13 13 -7
Driver and Safety Education Certification 0 0 2 2 2
Early Childhood Education 28 26 26 10 14 24 -2
Electrical Power Distribution 44 70 70 79 79 9
Electro-Mechanical Technology 24 19 19 14 14 -5
Farm Operations & Management - Ag Mechanics 20 0 0 8 8 8
Farm Operations & Management - Crops 20 1 1 -1
Farm Operations & Management - Crop Operations 20 2 2 -2
Farm Operations & Management - Dairy 20 9 9 3 3 -6
Farm Operations & Management - Dairy Technician 20 0 0 1 1 1
Farm Operations & Management - Farm Ag Maintenance | 20 1 1 0 0 -1
Farm Operations & Management - Livestock 20 0 0 6 6 6
Farm Operations & Management - Livestock Tech 20 1 1 1 1 0
Golf Course Management 5 5 7 7 2
Graphic and Web Design 25 15 15 9 9 -6
Health Information Technology 22 1 13 14 8 17 25 11
Human Services Associate 31 15 15 16 16 1
Industrial Mechanic 12 2 2 1 1 -1
Instrumentation and Controls Technology 0 1 0 0 -1
IT-Computer Support Technician 9 6 6 -3
IT-Network Specialist 16 16 16 16 0
Laboratory Science Technician 15 0 0 0 0 0
Leadership Development 1 1 1 1 0
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01/14/20 01/20/21
PROGRAM CAP P ACCEPT| TOTAL P ACCEPT| TOTAL YOy

Liberal Arts - Associate of Arts 10 1 11 9 9 18 7
Liberal Arts - Associate of Science 9 0 9 2 2 4 -5
Medical Assistant 32 19 19 22 22 3
Medical Coding Specialist 23 6 22 28 24 48 72 44
Medical Laboratory Technician 16 6 3 9 4 3 7 -2
Nail Technician 1 1 2 2 1
Nonprofit Leadership 1 1 1
Nursing-Associate Degree 54 85 49| 134 113 53| 166 32
Nursing-Associate Degree-Part-time 28 20 20 1 27 28
Pharmacy Tech (Shared) 0 0 1 1
Physical Therapist Assistant 18 13 12 25 12 7 19 -6
Supply Chain Assistant 0 0 0
Supply Chain Management 1 1 5 0 5 4
Undecided 42 0 42 34 0 34 -8
Welding 40 45 45 24 24 -21

TOTAL 44023| 649| 828 44463| 609| 856 28
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B. Chairperson’s Report
1. January 12 College In-Service

2. January 15 District Boards Association Conference

C. College President’s Report

1. Project RISE Update
Included below is an update on Project RISE.
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2. Restructuring Long-term Debt (Caleb White)

3. Executive Leadership Update

4. Legislative Update

5. Board Retreat and Upcoming Meeting Schedule

6. Round Robin

Caleb White will lead a discussion focused on the new COVID-19 Relief
Funds based on the Coronovirus Response and Relief Supplemental
Appropriations Act (CRSAA)

7. College Happenings

Establish Board Agenda Items for Next Meeting

A. Agenda

1. Budget Assumptions & Parameters
2. 2021-22 Budget

B. Time and Place
To Be Determined
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Adjourn to Closed Session

B. Consideration of adjourning to closed session for the purpose of:

1. Deliberating over potential college property opportunities per Wisconsin
Statutes 19.85(1)(e) Deliberating or negotiating the purchasing of public
properties, the investing of public funds, or conducting other specified
public business, whenever competitive or bargaining reasons require a
closed session.

2. Discussing employment situations per Wisconsin Statutes 19.85(1)(c)
Considering employment, promotion, compensation or performance
evaluation data of any public employee over which the governmental body
has jurisdiction or exercises responsibility.

3. Discussing specific personnel issues per Wisconsin Statutes 19.85(1)(f)
Considering financial, medical, social or personal histories or disciplinary
data of specific persons, preliminary consideration of specific personnel
problems or the investigation of charges against specific persons except
where par. (b) applies which, if discussed in public, would be likely to have
a substantial adverse effect upon the reputation of any person referred to
in such histories or data, or involved in such problems or investigations.

C. Approval of Closed Session Minutes of November 19, 2020, and
December 17, 2020

Reconvene to Open Session

A. Action, if necessary, on Closed Session Items

Adjournment
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